
V

4

SPEECH

OF

MR. JENIFER, OF MARYLAND,

ON

THE PKOPOSrnON TO PRINT THE TESTIMONY

IN llELATION TO

I

THE NEW JERSEY CONTESTED ELECTION.

KKLIVKUKIII

1) U R 1 N O T H E M 0 I! N I N G H OUR,

M.uuu n, 12, 13, H, ANi, 17, ISIC.

WASHINGTON:

l illNT'l'.l) .rV GAI.r.S AM) isr.ATON.

1841).

u





p-

SPEECH

Wednesday, March 11.

The resolution reported by Mr. Campbell, chairman of the Committee of

Elections, to print the testimony in relation to the New Jersey contested
election, and the amendment thereto, offered by Mr. Rice Garland, being
under consideration—

Mr. Jenifer, of Maryland, obtained the floor, and commenced his remarks

by saying that he was in favor of printing the testimony, the journal of the
committee, and both the reports. Since the discussion had commenced, cir
cumstances had occurred which made it imperative on the House to get
at the whole facts. At present we are ignorant of the proceedings of the
committee ; and the slight view we have had of them shows that we should

examine the whole. Contradictory statements have been made, and suspi
cions excited, by members of the committee, the correctness of which

cannot determine without an examination,

as to be competent to judge for ourselves.
[The morning hour having expired, during which only the question was

discussed, the Speaker announced the orders of the day.]

we

Let us then have the whole, so

I

Thursday, March 12.
Mr. Jenifer in continuation.

I am not surprised that a majority of the committee should be opposed to
printing, but it is indispensable to truth and to justice. The remarks of the

gentleman from Virginia (Mr. Rives) show at once that it is our duty to
print. I am for printing the journal of the committee, the whole of the

timony, and both the reports. Gentlemen charge us with preventing this
printing; but let them look at their own side ; let them remember the open
declarations that they would not print. They have now refused to hear the

most important testimony ; they have refused to hear the parties; and they
have refused to give us an opportunity to speak ; but have forced the House

to a vote under the previous question. It is not true that the minority have
opposed the printing: on the contrary, they have gone for it from the first.

It is the majority who rush to a judgment without hearing or printing the
testimony, or so much as hearing the report of the minority of the committee.
It is they who refused to receive that report, and who opposed the printing
of it, without knowing a word that was in it; but now, after having blindly
voted their men into the House, they are ready to print. I hope they will
do it. I want to see the result. Gentlemen seem to exult that the deed is

done, and they want to suppress a part of the testimony, that they may be
shielded from the indignation of the country. I want to see their journal,
for that journal stands impugned by members of their own committee. I

want to see it, that we may try the issue. The gentleman from New York
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(Mr. Fillmore) stated certain things as facts, which the gentleman from
Virginia (Mr. RirEs) said were not true. I want to see that matter tried.

Mr. Rives, of Virginia, here interposed to explain, and said : I will

endeavor to state distinctly what occured. The gentleman from New York

(Mr. Fillmore) was supposing what might have happened in the committee,

because the rules did not permit him to speak in a more direct manner. He

was supposing fifty things, and, among others, he supposed that a report had
been prepared by the chairman, and adopted by the committee, without

reading the evidence. I then said, that if he supposed such a thing had been
done in the committee, he supposed what was false. I said that it was not

true that the report had been adopted without reading the evidence, and that
there was not a member of the committee who had not read it. So far as I

am myself concerned,! here state that I have read all the evidence. I sent

to New Jersey myself and got a copy of all the testimony that had been be

fore the Governor of New Jersey and his Council, that I might examine the
whole carefully, and I have done so.

Mr. Jenifer resumed. I will not permit the gentleman from Virginia to
escape by making a false issue. An allegation was made by the gentleman
from New York, (Mr. Fillmore,) who spoke in such language as reached

the feelings of the gentleman ; for there is always a power in the voice of
truth. The gentleman, to save himself and his friends, immediately said, in
a distinct and audible voice, “It is false.

Mr. Rives again interposed. As there is likely to grow out of this affair

a question of veracity, I would thank the gentleman from New York (Mr.
Fillmore) to state the circumstances.

Mr. Jenifer. I will not allow the gentleman to escape : he has gone off
to a false issue.

Mr. Rives. If I can avoid it, I will not get in a passion.
The Chair here called upon Mr. Rives to take his seat, till it could be

ascertained w'hether the gentleman from Maryland had said any thing offen
sive, which gave him a right to interpose and explain.

Some sensation was produced in the House, but, after some conversation,
Mr. Rives was permitted to proceed, with the assent of Mr. Jenifer.

What I desire is to put this matter in such a shape that the gentleman
may not do me injustice. It is because I dislike a personal difficulty that I
arrest the gentleman now. The gentleman from New York, (Mr. Fillmore,)
in stating his various supposititious cases, asked what the House would think,
supposing a majority of the committee had directed their chairman to lake

the evidence and make out such a report as should meet his views, and that
report had been brought into the committee-room and adopted by the
mittee, without having the evidence read. When he reached that point,
knowing that I had myself read the evidence, and that the committee had
called for it, and that the evidence had been read, I did say that, if the gen
tleman supposed that, he would be supposing what was false. I was looking
at the gentleman from New York at the time, and I would now like him to
say whether the facts were not so—I hope the gentleman from Maryland
will still yield the floor that the gentleman from New York may make his
statement.

Mr. Jenifer resumed. I should yield to the gentleman’s request with
pleasure were there any mistake as to what had been said, but of that fact
there can be none. I never thought that a mere statement of facts, under
any circumstances, could lead to any “difficulty” with the gentleman from
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Virginia. Tlie geiuleman from New York (Mr. Fillmore) was stating cer
tain facts ; the gentleman from Virginia said that that statement was false ;
on which I immediately said to my friends around me that the journal of the
committee must be printed, that it might be decided how the facts stood ; be
cause, if the gentleman from New York had indeed stated what was false, he
had done the rankest injustice to the committee, and had attempted to de
ceive the House; but if he had stated what was true, then the gentleman
from Virginia had done the same injustice to him. The question now is a
question of veracity. I took down the words of the gentleman from New
York and the response of the gentleman from Virginia, immediately after
they were uttered ; and I want to see where the responsibility rests, whether

upon the gentleman from New York (Mr. Fillmore) or the gentleman from
Virginia (Mr. Rives.)
Here Mr. Jenifer read from a memorandum as follows:

7th March.—Mr. Fillmore, in his speech upon the. New Jersey case, stated, byway
of supposition, that a sealed package was in the hands of the chairman of the Committee

of Elections, alleged to be the evidence taken in relation to the illegality of the votes given
at South Amboy, which was asked to be sent to the Speaker to be opened, which propo
sition was refused ; second, and that the report of the committee was adopted without this
evidence being examined by the committee—upon which, Mr. Rites of Virginia, in an
audible voice, said such a suppositimi would be false."

Mr. Rives here interposed. I say that the gentleman in stating this must
bo mistaken. Among other things, the gentleman has said that which I never

denied ; but what 1 did say related to what I have stated. The gentleman
from New York did suppose that which the gentleman has now mentioned,
and so far he supposed what was true ; but he supposed another thing to
which my remarks related, and the gentleman from Maryland seems to have

confounded the two.

Mr. Jenifer proceeded. Such a thing is possible, but it can scarcely be,
because 1 am intrenched by the recollections of gentlemen all around

The memory of the gentleman from Virginia must have failed him. When

I took down his words, I referred to three different gentlemen near me. I
took them down while they were yet fresh in my memory. To prevent mis
take, I submitted them immediately to the gentleman from New York him

self, (Mr. Fillmore,) who read the memorandum, and made

corrections; so that there can be no mistake about that,

reason why I am so anxious for the printing. 1 am anxious for the dignity
of this House, and for the honor of the minority of the committee, who have
here been openly charged with making a statement which is false. The

gentleman from Ohio (Mr. Medill) made a statement which was calculated

to bring down the indignation of this House on one of the members of the

committee, (Mr. Smith, of Connecticut;) but, when the circumstances came

to be explained, tlte tables were turned, and that indignation was directed to
the gentleman from Ohio. For as much as ten minutes the impression was
on the mind of every member who lieard the statement, that the gentleman
from Connecticut had been guilty of the dishonorable act of violating a seal;
hut it tiiiHed out that no seal had been broken, and that the gentleman
wholly innocent. Then the gentleman from Ohio charged him with being
in secret correspondence with some of the parties claiming seats; and yet,
in a few moments, he admitted that he himself had been holding correspond
ence with those on the other side.

Mr. Medill, of Ohio, the member alluded to, here rose and said that he

((
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had just entered the House, and would be glad to hear the gentleman repeat
the remarks he had made.

Mr. Jenifer. I say that, with a view of operating injury on one member

r of Elections, an insinuation was made by the gentleman
from Ohio which led me, and all those around me, to believe that in that

committee a seal had been broken; and that, when this was explained and
done away, a further insinuation was made that the same member of the

committee was holding
ence surrounded with

gentleman from Ohio

a very suspicious correspondence, or a correspond*
very suspicious circumstances; and that, when the

. , . was called upon to say whether he had facts in his pos-
sesston to sustain him in such an insinuation, he refused to state what they
were, although thrice called on to exhibit them if he had any.

Mr. Medill. The gentleman does not do me justice. So far from re-

using, 1 tried to get the floor that I might give the suspicious circumstances

V S'ven them ; but I wished to repeat them;
frnl, M ^ f allowed to proceed. Does the gentleman

rri" "• >•
Mr. Jenifer. Why, in reply to that, I will

me

, this : Unless the suspi-
Clous circumstances to which the gentleman alluded shall be developed
the satisfaction of my mind, the gentleman
the negative.

Mr. Mbdill. The circumstances are true as I related them. If they do
not satisfy the mtnd of the gentleman from Maryland, I cannot help it. I

no^WrSay that they are true, and will maintain what I say either here or else-

to

cannot expect me to answer in

‘he chairman of the Committee
Ways and Means called for the orders of the day, and the discussion was

postponed until to-morrow—Mr. Jenifer retaining his right to the floor.]

of

Friday, March 13.
Mr. Jenifer, in continuation.

Mr^Fn f
^ the following explanation :

I"' f M*-- Jenifer, who had the floor, rose and
fart ' 'I™ Mr. Speaker, to make an explanation in regard to some

^cts, stated by me the other day in reference to the proceedings of the Com-
mittee of Elections, when they agreed upon the basis of a report recently
made by a majority of that committee to this House. I observed yesterday
that there seemed to be some misunderstanding on this subject. I am the
more desirous now of making this explanation, and setting this matter right
so far as 1 am concerned, because the proceedings of thf, committee C
since been reported to this House, and I am now at liberty to speak of facts
as they exist and not hypothetically. I will endeavor, Iherefore, t^be so
distinct as not to be misunderstood.

Mr. Fillmore explained at large, and justified the course taken by the
rninority of the committee, and supported the allegations he had made against
the majority by quoting the journals of the committee, and reading several
resolutions adopted by them and others rejected ; and concluded by saying,

perceive after these little amendments, the resolutioLas re-

jected. Was not this a direct and express refusal to send that package to
the Speaker that it might be opened, that the committee could considL of
Its contents*
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Mr. Medill here arose, and addressing Mr. Fillmore, said, Does the

gentleman mean to make any question of veracity with mel

Mr. Fillmore. I make questions of veracity with nobody. I have not

come here to settle my character for veracity. 1 state these things as facts,
and here is my proof.

[After some further remarks by others,]
Mr. Fillmore proceeded. I say, that in relation to this matter, I make

no issue of veracity with any man. I have not come here for that purpose.

I am compelled, from a sense of duty, to state these facts, that the House

and the country may know them, and no threats or attempts at intimidation

will prevent me. If any gentleman differs with me in regard to these facts,
I cannot help it. 1 do not profess to be infallible ; but I state according

to my recollection, and give you the evidence, so far as the journal of

our proceedings can be evidence, to show the truth of what I state. I hope

those who may differ from me will be able to produce as good a voucher.
With all these facts—with the incontestable proof that I have offered from

the journal itself, I must leave it for the House and the world to judge,

whether I have done the majority ef this committee “ gross injustice" by

charging them with “ refusing" to consider this evidence when they made that

report; and with a desire to “ suppress" evidence when they refused to send

the sealed package to the Speaker to have it opened, and agreed upon their

report without looking at it.
[Here Mr. Fisher rose to a question of order. Mr. Fillmore remarked

that he had said about all that he intended, and he had rather yield the floor
than to enter into any contest of order,
resumed.]
On looking over the journals, 1 find there has been a suppression of ma

terial facts. The gentleman from Virginia has certainly come to most extra

ordinary conclusions, from the facts which there appear. He said that all

the testimony had been read and examined. This was denied by his colleague

the committee, (Mr. Botts,) because there was one sealed packet of tes

timony which had never been opened. The gentleman from South Caro

lina, (Mr. Campbell,) by way of escape, said that he did not consider that

testimony before the committee ; it was under an envelope directed to the

Speaker, and that therefore the committee could not examine it. Here

permit me to say, that this explanation of the chairman of the committee

might be understood as implicating the Speaker himself; for, surely, if they
had come to him with the packet, he would immediately have sent it back

to the committee, and they are responsible for not having done so. I there
fore take issue with the gentleman from South Carolina, and aver that that

testimony was before the committee ; that they had power to examine it, but
would not, and did not; and, therefore, have not discharged their duty, under

the instructions of the resolution of the 28th February, directing them to

report upon the lawful voles,
very ingenious argument, founded on the meaning of the word forthwith.

I will ask the chairman, and the majority of that committee, whether a ma

jority of this House did not expressly amend the instructions to the committee

by the insertion of the word lawful before the w'ord votes? Now, let us see

whether they have reported who had the majority of all the lawful votes.

The chairman admits the importance of the evidence contained in that packet,
and that the seal was not broken ; yet there was an attempt here to produce

the impression that the seal had been broken, and that important secrets had

He then sat down, and Mr. Jenifer

on
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To excuse themselves, they have put forth
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been kepi back from the House. 1 confess I was surprised at nhal I tlicn

witnessed. The chairman of the committee rose, and, with great candor and
ftirness, declared tiiat nothing had taken place in relation to that packet

which was calculated to bring suspicion on any gentleman, or of which any

member of tlie committee had any reason to be ashamed ; but, the moment

he came to tliat point, he was put down by loud cries of order, and was re

fused leave to speak, becaitse he was vindicating tlie chaiacter of an honest

and honorable man. We have been told of an attempt to betray the House.
It has been insinuated that there was something unfair, because papers were

laid before them which they refused to open or read. And why did they re
fuse ? Because they knew those papers contained fhe proof of facts which
would compel them to revise their report, and to declare that those other five

members were entitled to seats in this hall, under the instructions of the

House.

There are other matters connected with the same subject. A resolution

was introduced the other morning, by one of the members of the committee,

(Mr. Rives,) and, as he says, on his own personal responsibility , (1 am happy
that it does rest on the responsibility of one gentleman alone,) which charged
the Governor of New Jersey with having commissioned one set of men, when

he knew that the other set had been chosen by the people. Now it is im

portant that we should get at the whole of the facts, in order that we may

see whether this is so. This resolution, be it remembered, was moved in

the House before the report of that committee was made, and the resolution

assumes that evidence was examined before the commitee which proved this
conduct on the Governor, whom it accuses of direct fraud. Now, I will not
say whether the fact is so or not ; but this I will say, that the allegation comes
in direct conflict with the declarations of the minority of that committee—

of gentlemen 1 never knew to be guilty of falsehood ; and 1 have no hesita
tion in expressing my confidence in the statement of those gentlemen, until
the records shall have been examined, and the contrary appear. It is, there
fore, all important that the Journals of the committee should be printed, to
enable the House to judge of their proceedings.

[Mr Rives here interposed, and said, that if allowed to do so, he would now
assign the reasons why he had introduced that resolution.]

Mr. Jenieeu objected to yielding the floor for the purpose of hearing the
gentleman’s reasons, which ho might assign at another time, hut suffered Mr.

R. to proceed, who said : Tiie course of the gentleman’s remarks is calcula

ted to induce a belief that I have been opposed to the printing of these doc
uments. This, I never was; and 1 introduced the resolution that the public
might know the reason why that gentleman and his friends objected to print.
I was in favor of printing from the beginning. I was the first man who mov

ed to print all the testimony; but, as gentlemen in the opposition would not
consent to this, I moved the resolution, and pledged myself that all the points
stated in the preamble would be confirmed by the evidence, when it should

appear.

Mr. Jenifer. I have not yet come to that part of my subject. As to the
gentleman’s great desire for the printing, he will find that a full opportunity
will be afforded him to reply. He says he was always for the printing. I
ask the gentleman whether he voted for printing the journal of the committee ?

Mr. Rives. I am glad 1 have been called upon. The proposition to print
the journal was made, and I voted against it, for these reasons— [a laugh, and
cries of. Oho ! that’s enough!]
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Mr. Jenifer. T'le gentleman lias ju»l he was against
i„g. He wanted to print every thing,
it, and voted against it. So iar, th^"’ „rowLt of it; that it would lead

Mr. Rives. I said that no good ^ to make attacks on each

bad feelings ; that ^ good, it would only lead to mis-
other; and that, instead of mg y g ^ and
ohief. While my o'Y\"°„w h ^eJ I believed such a use would be made of

willing that all should k , overruled. A proposition was made

il as to produce bad ,o request that so much of the testimony

in committee to reconsider ^ ^ also, that the journal should

ns related to fogh I felt unwilling ; but, since gentlemen have

accompany it. ^ ^ ,o go alHengths and print every thing,
taken the course tl.ey have, I am ready t g^ s ,,iat

^•ll noT aVrbeltmTbe approved by my Maker; and which,
when known,

Ta'iinot be condemned by ‘h® be says that he pursues
Mr. Jenifer. I str^ght forward in inconsistency : he

a stra'glit-forvvard course printing, yet voted against it, but,

,ells us” that he was always to print all the papers. Thank

now. it seems the gentleman is ,Lyou know the public must

for nothing, sir: you have g° to make a virtue
have the whole matter us at every step; have kept
of necessity. O^yf ’ seats to their own friends; have denied

us in the dark until they ha g , ' , after having carried their point,

us an examination into their iant tlie journal printed,
all generosity, magnanimity, and ^YheYoming contest for the New Jer-

not for the benefit Y/ ’® fConsider Settled ; but l^vant it that it may go m
sev seats—because that I consider set 1 want Vireinm

the people, that it may go h^^Vl^ndVcan disregard the constitution,

,0 sL how far that gentleman and ' ®-"oed iL Governor of New

and laws of a ^h a cross a^d wilful fraud, although he made out

Jersey, and charged „ v whYthe laws and constitution of that »tate;

his returns in strict conformity ‘ ^ majority of votes cast in

and this, because tlie g®"* ®T,h re was • what would the gentleman say if, in
favor of his own men. Admit hundred votL cast in his favor,

his own district, there was a '"®J®"Y,hat more than five hundred aliens and
.„d h. kne. ,h., i. ...U et “J’i", Would Ihe p..,l.-
free negroes, not entitled to vote, ha majority f Mr. J. said

man come here and 'Ya^ssent • and if he would do that he would do

the gentleman seemed to nod ^ ,he laws of his own State,
anything. -^^’is ftfel 1- r ^
He, in common of the United States; and he and they
and constitution of ^lY^YeLjentatives from New Jersey. Tins res

have in this House elected P anticipation ; it was a feeler to try

olulion of the gf"' *'"'''" nd it was calculated and intended to prejudice the
how far they might ^Lnearance of authority, for it declares that

minds of the House. It to ot been
there was evidence before *J'® ® mes to be^ based upon testimony which

Src\r»l“ef;"“,’,yG.ve,n.. had cnd.l.d . faud

to
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but there was evidence to prove that the votes given at Millville and South
Amboy had been illeplly if not fraudulently given ; and the counting those
votes did give a majority to Mr. Dickerson and his friends,

unwilling that the pntjeman shall thus forestall public opinion by putting
forth resolutions full of strong assertions not supported by the fact; assertions
which, if they were true, would compel all honest and honorable men to vote

with him. Unquestionably, if it had been proved that such a fraud had been
perpetrated, 't would be unjust and dishonorable to withhold from his friends

their spts. But ii the allegations of the gentlemen are not true, and the
journal does not show that any evidence was examined to prove such fraud,
then 1 say that tne gentleman’s course, although straight forward, was un
fair, and not justified by the facts. He first brings forward a resolution, not
founded in truth, and then he refuses to print the journals which would
expose its falsehood.

My object is now to show that the majority of this House has adopted a
report and resolution which rest upon a false foundation; and this being
shown, that they owe it to themselves, to the country, to truth, justice, and
the constitution, either to reconsider their vote, or to recommit the report.
To show that gentlemen are bound in fairness to do this, I appeal to the
journal of the committee itself, which will show that testimony did come be
fore that committee, purporting to contain evidence which would, if admit
ted, have corrected the error in the report; which, on being corrected, the
result would have been the reverse of what it has been.

Now 1 am

To show this, I
will refer to a part of a letter which accompanied this testimony, and then
we shall see the reasons why gentlemen suppressed the evidence ; why they
hurried a report into the House, the reasoning of which they themsel
disown and repudiate, but which they adopted, because on that false reason

ing the report came to the conclusion they desired ; namely, that their five
candidates had the greatest number of lawful votes. Now we shall see the

great formality observed by these lovers of the people’s rights. Certain tes
timony had been taken before, but because there was a legal defect in the
notice given to opposite parties, that testimony was rejected ; not as untrue,
but as informal, and so incompetent. To correct this defect in form, the
testimony was taken over again, after the due legal notice ; that testimnny
was brought to the committee; the committee knew what it was; they
knew that it wmnt to the very point at issue ; yet they refused to look at it,
consider it, or have it read ; and they made their report on testimony before
it came. Now, if I am correct in these facts, it is not assuming too much to
say that, under these circumstances, the examination of that testimony
withheld expressly and purposely to suppress the truth. To prevent this
monstrous injustice, a gentleman from Virginia, (Mr. Botts,) a member of
the committee, moved in committee, the following resolution ; which was
read by Mr. B., as follows:

ves

was

“ Wheareas it is the desire of this committee that equal and impartial justice should be
rendered both the parties to the contested election from the State of New Jersey; and
whereas a mass of testimony has been referred by the House to this committee, which,
together with the testimony heretofore received as competent evidence, it is alleged indis
putably establishes the right of one, if not all, the eommissioned members to occupy their
seats, hut which it is indispensable should be examined in order to arrive at the truth of
the case.

'‘Resolved, therefore. That the chairman of this committee be instructed to ask that the
report heretofore made may be recommitted, in order that the material facts developed in
the testimony now before us may be embodied in said report.”

A
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Which preamble and resolution the majority of the committee refused to

adopt.
Mr. B. stated that he had offered this resolution after the report had been

made ; but the committee, instead of adopting it, indefinitely postponed its
consideration ; whereupon, Mr. B. offered the following :

“Resolved, That we will proceed to examine the testimony now before us, in order that
a supplementary report may be made of all the material facts disclosed therein, and that
the chairman of this committee be instructed to ask that the consideration of the report
heretofore made to the House may be postponed until Friday next, in order that said sup
plementary report may be made.”

Which was also rejected.
I have read this to show that the committee had it in their power to cor

rect the error in their report, and would not do it. I will now put home to
gentlemen this question: If that packet of testimony had come from the op
posite party, and instead of showing, as it did show, that the commissioned

members were entitled to their seats, it had proved that they were not enti
tled, would the gentleman from Virginia have found any difficulty—any in
superable obstacle—in the fact that the packet was directed to the Speaker
of the House ? Would he have hesitated one moment to send it into the

House to the Speaker, and get it back to the committee? Will the gen
tleman say so ? But no, sir. The committee knew that if they received
that testimony it would turn their report upside down ; and therefore they
have suppressed material facts which, under the order of this House, it was
their, bounden duty to consider. .4nd, if it were not unparliamentary, I

^ would say that, knowing what they did know as to the contents of that pack
et, the objection about the envelope was a poor subterfuge, and nothing
better.

They attempt to justify themselves by saying that the packet was not in

possession. Not in their possession, when the chairman had it in his

hands, on his table, whilst the committee were in session, and a proposition
made to send it to the Speaker to be opened !
'Mr. Speaker, if an individual were to receive a letter which he knew

tained a notice from bank to pay on a certain day, and were to keep that
letter in his pocket unopened until after the day of payment, and were to
plead, by way of ridding himself of the debt, that he had received no notice,
would not a jury of his country pronounce such transaction to be dishonest?

And if it would be so in pecuniary transactions, would it be creditable in
political ?

This is a novel case ; the like of which has never before been attempted
to be perpetrated. It has been left for this House to do an act over which
posterity may^ have to mourn. The means resorted to by a party to get un
restrained control over the actions of this House ate well calculated to strike
terror into the minds of all considerate

their

con-

men.

But a few weeks since, not a member on this floor was hold enough to
move that Mr. Dickerson and his friends were entitled to seats in this House;
they being in possession of no return, no commission, no credentials; although
they allege that they had a majority of the votes of the State of New Jer

sey. Yefa Committee of Elections has done that which this House refused
to do, and the House has sanctioned the act of the committee upon the faith
of their report. So the House may say that we did not do it; and the com
mittee may respond that you directed us to do it.
When the House ordered this committee to report, it ordered it to report
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Iswliich five claimants had received a majority of the lawfid votes cast,

that word “ lawful” to have no efl’ect 1 1 put it to the chairman of the com

mittee, as an honorable man, whether the gist of the debate in this House,

which was finally determined by the casting vote of the Speaker, did not

turn upon the insertion of that very word “ lawfull” But that word is to be

nullified. It is to be utterly deprived of all force and effect, while the word

forthwith,” in the same resolution, is to be all-powerful. See how the

chairman reasons. He was ordered to report forthwith: that he must obey

most conscientiously. He was ordered to report the lawful votes l that com

mand he utterly disregards. The word lawful might as well have been

out of the resolution. I speak of the chairman, because the report is his

own, and the very extraordinary reasoning it contains is rejected and dis
owned by his colleagues. The gentleman, in justification of his conclusion

to pay all possible regard to one word in the resolution, and no regard to the
other, refers us to the words of the proviso ; but surely all the legal knowl

edge the gentleman may once have possessed must have forsaken him when

he took a ground like this. He says the addition of the proviso was a suf
ficient evidence that the House wanted an immediate report. But what is

that proviso I Let us see.
“ Provided, That nothing herein contained shall be so construed as to prevent or delay

the action of said committee in taking testimony, or deciding the said case upon the merits

of the election.”

So far from abolishing the force of the word “ lawful,” it does away the

force of the word “ forthwith.” The committee must report the majority of
lawful votes, provided their doing so will not delay the investigation. But,

admitting that the resolution did require an immediate report; surely, as
honorable man, I never would have reported that which I knew not to be

true. If there was a real inconsistency between two commands given by
the House at the same time, the committee was bound in fairness to apprize

the House of that fact, and ask for further orders; but if I had been chatr-

man of that committee, sooner than I would have reported to this House

what 1 knew in my conscience to be untrue, I would have made no report

at all. And the fact was that the committee themselves did not approve the

report, although they agreed with its conclusions; nor did the chairman him

self, for he refused to vote.
I have in relation to this matter a few questions, which I am warranted in

asking. If members come here and present resolutions, I think that those

resolutions are fair subjects of examination. I hope that I shall not be con

sidered, in what I am going to say, as improperly volunteering in a matter

that does not belong to mo. I am about to do what 1 feel bound in justice

to do. The gentleman from Virginia (Mr. RtVEs) wields, I know, a power

ful influence In his own State, and also in this House. The gentleman

from Virginia roundly pronounced the statement made by the gentleman

from New York (Mr. Fillmore) to be “ false.” There is no real question

of veracity, but tiie majority of the committee have thrown themselves into

the breach to protect their report, and to denounce, unsparingly, all who

oppose it. I will oppose it for one, for should the facts be suppressed, it

would go forth to all Virginia that the minority of the Committee of Elec

tions had been guilty of falsehood. First comes the gentleman from Virgi
nia and attacks the gentleman from New York as stating what is false:

then comes the gentleman from Ohio, (Mr. Medill,) and attacks the gentle-
from Connecticut, (Mr. Smith,) with an insinuation that he had violated a

41
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Seldom have 1 been more surprised, and never have 1 felt deeper in-
assailed in this manner, whose moral

dignuiion, than in seeing honorable mena^
and religious characters are without a stain.

FMr Campbell, chairman of the committee, interposed and spoke w th

some warmth, but his voice is weak from bodily indisposition,
and the noise

n the House was very great, so that the reporter could catch Imle of what

Mr. C. said except the words-‘‘ It is not the fact-let the gentlemen speak

No di,... ohorg. U mode , bo, d.,k ..d in.id-
ions surmises are resorted to, to cast opprobrium "Xsl piiritJ
unwarranted attempts made to excite suspicion
of life, ingenuousness of conduct, and high moral ‘
the iealousv and envy of those who have neither the magnanimity to do

justice to, nor the honor to appreciate merit in, a political opponent. Where
is the gallantry of gentlemen in singling out members whose moral re

ig oL principis, as well as the known opinions of the section of country

£ w!:r„.?the; come, compel them to refrain from a just chastisement of

such unwarranted attacks 1

S'gi:;™” (M. c.« “pon by ,b.

Connecticut' ^ -,1 |„ remark, that prudence is sometimes
m:': 1 ...j . di.™....,, ...d. i . Mg,,.

'f Snnt Ca^olina’fMr CampbL.l) rise and make the candid explanation

frp South C \ ^hi„k there would l.ave been a magnanimous feeling in

il fHoiL wldch would have responded with joy to his manly attempt to
this Hou ^ j 1^ violence, as soon as it
vindicate innocent man from a charge that was

lurue Where, I would ask again, is the gallantry of gentlemen who pro-

so much 1 Where is their delicacy and magnanimity to a political oppo-

re

ra

im-

\
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nent, honestly differing from them in opinion 1 One gentleman pronounces
a statement false ; another gentleman charges another with dishonorable con

duct, and he is denied the privilege to explain. If these chivalrous gentle
men will look for a moment at the position in which they now stand before
the country, they must perceive that they can gain no honor there.

Gentlemen tell us they are responsible here and elsewhere for all they
say. Yes, sir, and I remember that General Jackson took the responsibility
when he removed the deposites, but who could touch himl Responsible!
What is their responsibility? If the responsibility amounts to this, that, both
here and elsewhere, gentlemen are ready to adhere to statements which are

not true, I envy them not. Or, by dark insinuations bring suspicion upon
honorable men, when a direct attack could be met by immediate refutation,

they resemble more the midnight assassin, than the bolder daring of the high
way robber.

I

[The morning hour here expired, and the Chair declared Mr. Jenifer

II entitled to the floor, when the subject should be resumed.]stii

Saturday, March 14.

Mr. Jenifer in continuation.

Mr. JENtPER. I shall endeavor to show that the views I have heretofore

presented were justified by the facts. I hope gentlemen will have a little

patience ; and should I arraign their proceedings, they will not regard it as
personal. Yesterday I had the report of the majority under consideration,
since when I have looked at the minority report, which I have only seen
this morning; and by that, and the slight examination I have been able to

make of the journal of the committee, I find I am fortified in what I have

said. From all of which I infer, that when the Committee on Elections first

entered upon their duties, they designed to act fairly and impartially ; they
were bona fide at work ; they adopted the usual correct course; they
commenced under the standing rules of the House to ascertain who were en

titled to seats “ according to the constitution of the United States and the

laws of New Jersey,” as will appear by their resolutions ; amongst the first
of which, was the following :

“ Resolved, That this committee will now proceed to ascertain which five of the ten in

dividuals claiming the five vacant seats from New Jersey, received a majority of /eg-af votes,
and therefore arc duly elected members of the 26th Congress from that SState, according to
the constitution of the United States and the laws of New Jersey.”

How far they have adhered to this and other resolutionsstill on their journal,
facts yet to be developed will sufficiently demonstrate. They profess, at
least, a determination to investigate and ascertain who were entitled to seats

on the ground of having received the greatest number of lawful votes. They
follow up this resolution by adopting another, which appears to be an addi
tional evidence that they intended to act impartially, and do justice to all
sides.

I

1 Resolved, further. That whilst, in the opinion of this committee, the certificates of the
Governor of New Jersey are prima fade evidence that those who hold them are entitled
to seats, they are not conclusive evidence as to the ultimate right, and that such certificates,
being contested, such right must depend on the majority of efga/votes, given in conformity
with the constitution of the United States and the laws of New Jersey.”

The first branch of this resolution was adopted unanimously. After which

the claimants appeared before tbe committee ; and, being severally heard, the
following resolution was adopted :

(t

I

i
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Resolved, That we will now take up the testimony which has been referred to this

committee in the New Jersey case; and if, during the investigation of the subject, it shall
be desired by either party to furnish additional testimony, that then the parties be allowed
such reasonable time as may be determined by the committee, to take such additional tes

timony, in the manner prescribed by the laws of New Jersey relating to contested elections,
unless the parties agree upon some other mode which may be sanctioned by the committee.’

Thus the parties were allowed time to take additional testimony, for the
purpose of enabling the committee to do justice to each. And that there

might be no mistake—no misunderstanding as to what the claimants had

expect, upon the application of J. B. Aycrigg and his friends, further time
was allowed to take testimony, as will appear by the following resolution :

Therefore, resolved. That the chairman be required to notify the several claimants
aforesaid that this committee will not proceed to a final decision of the question of ultimate
right depending before them until the second Monday in April next, at which time the
committee will report, the proofs to be closed, and will not receive any testimony taken by
either of the parties after that time; but nothing in this resolution shall prevent the com
mittee at any time before that day from taking up and deciding said case, if the parties
shall declare themselves ready with all their testimony.”

By this the parties were notified that, unless they themselves agreed that a
decision should be had before, the committee would not dispose of the

until the second Monday in April next.” What sudden thought came
the minds of the committee,or what extraneous influence

((

If

to
1

<c

case

((

over

was brought to bear,
subsequently, so as to produce a total change in their opinions and actions, we
are left to conjecture. Whilst J. B. Aycrigg and his friends were absent in

New Jersey taking depositions, under the direction of the committee, the
chairman was instructed to make a report, in virtue of which Philemon
Dickerson and his friends are declared to be entitled to seats in this House,
and the Speaker directed to qualify them as members. Was there ever a

more flagrant violation of a recorded pledge? Was there ever a greater
want of delicacy, than that this report should have been made to the House

on the 8th of March, without even advising those claimants of their intention
so to do ?

I am aware that the honorable chairman says that they were instructed,
under the House resolution of the 28th of February, to re\>on forthwith, and
the committee cloak themselves under this resolution. But if it can be

shown that this is a mere subterfuge to screen themselves from the odium of

an act the responsibility of which they are anxious to be relieved from,it will
only be an additional evidence of a want of ingenuousness.
How was that resolution adopted? by whom.advocated ? By the majority

of the committee themselves. It is true, they did not move it; their con
sciences would not permit them to do that; but a less conscientious individ

ual is found in the chairman of the Committee of Military Affairs, (Mr.
Johnson, of Tennessee,)—and such may be found for any purpose

seems to have extended his guardian care over all the committees of this

House. He moved the resolution—the majority of the committee voted for

it. He was the instrument—they the approvers.
. Let us see what the resolution is, and whether they have obeyed its instruc
tions, according to the spirit and intention.

Resolution of the House, February 28, 1840.
Resolved, That the Committee of Elections be authorized to report to this House such

papers and such of their proceedings as they may desire to have printed by order of the
House; and that they be instructed also to report forthwith which five of the

dividuals claiming seats from the State of New Jersey received the greatest number of law
ful votes from the whole State for Representatives in the Congress of the United States at

\

who

((

ten in-
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the election of 1838 in sail State, with all the evidence of that fact in their possession:
Provided, That nothing herein contained shall be so construed as to prevent or delay the
action of said committee in taking testimony, and deciding the said case upon the merits of
the election.”

which five ofBy this resolution they are instructed to report forthwith
the ten individuals claiming seats from the State of New Jersey received the

greatest number of ‘ lawful' votes.” And they have assumed and reported

votes to be lawful, when they had evidence in their possession, had they e.x-
amined it before they made that report, going to prove that the polls at

Millville and South Amboy had been conducted fraudulently, and that

number of the votes taken was illegal, and not entitled to be taken under tbe

law of New Jersey. The report \s justified upon the pretence that the word
forthwith,” in the resolution of the 28th of February, was imperative upon

But it will

((

a

((

the committee; and the word “lawful” of no import whatever,
be recollected, and the honorable chairman is well aware of the lact, that

lawful,” after considerable debate, was inserted before the word

in the resolution, by the casting vote of the Speaker,
formality of the ayes and noes upon the insertion of that word alone, if it

were of no import? If the word “ lawful" was, in the opinion of the com
mittee, and more especially in that of the chairman, a mere intruder, and of

no effect, why should the honorable chairman have occupied so large a space

in that report, in attempting to show that the word “ forthwith” was the gist

of the instructions, and the word “ lawful” of no avail. It would seem as if,

whilst the chairman was drawing that report, he felt great difficulty in re

conciling it to him.self to disregard that word “lawful,” and yet he tells us

he had none whatever. Then the argument in the report must have been to

satisfy the consciences of his friends on the committee, because he had no

riiihtto suppose that the House would have any doubt, as he himself had none.

Be this as it may, the committee were instructed to report upon the “ lawful
votes.” They have reported votes to be “ lawful,” which the facts go to

show are unlawful; and this the report itself seems to admit when it says:

“ It is proper, however, to state that, slwuld all the votes proved to be illegal by compe-
tent testimony,, he deducted from those who received the greatest number at tl.^ polls,
which appear to have been held in conformity with law, the result would not affect the

right of any candidate to a seat.”
They say the “ illegal votes deducted from those who received the great

est number, the result'would not affect the right of any candidate to a seat.”

Now that is precisely what we believe not to be the fact; and, therefore, the

committee were instructed to report who had the greatest number of lawfid

votes. Vet they have not stated the number of either lawful or unlawful

votes taken, but assume that all the votes taken were “ lawful.”

But to cotne back for a moment to the resolution of the 2Stli February,

tinder which the committee felt bound to report “forthwith,” without regard
lawful votes,” how have they obeyed the instruction to report

forthwith? Tbe committee met on the 29tb of February, the day after the

of the resolution. Mr. Fillmore, a minority member, offered this:

the word

votes
Why tlie11(i

to the

passage
‘‘Resolved, That this committee, in obedience to the resolution of the House adopted

yesterday, will forthwith proceed to take up the evidence now before the committee, to

^certainwhich five of the ten individuals claiming seats from the State of New Jersey

received the greatest number of lawful votes from the whole State for Representatives in

the Congress of the United States at the election of 1838 in said State.’”

This was rejected—Messrs. Rives, Medill, Brown, and Fisher, voting in ,
the negative. The chairman and Mr. Botts being absent. Tims they re
fused to examine the evidence before them, and adopted the following:
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yesterday, and that in doing ™he takrand^c^oSer'theTr”'^r‘’*i*'' ‘i®^“'^^® resolution of
to the several claimants by the Governor and Privy CouncU of
those returned by the election officers of the tow" sffiSofl^^lM^t'T^^^^
and South Amboy, m Middlesex countv, to the clerL of 1 ’ “ county,
h^mg be™ polled in said townships, as f/. of
On this resolution the vote tvas as follows :

Fisher-4.
J\oee—Messrs. Fillmore, Crabb, and Smith—3.
But before the

.th'sti- s;,-t.:trS5i.i.a“ t“r

to amend it by
((

may
laws of

On this amendment the ■
Ayes—Fillmore, Crabb, and Smith.
IVoes—Rives, Medill, Brown, and Fisher.

vote was as follows :

The committee first refuse to take up and e.xamine the evidence before
them, and also refuse to permit the chairman »to deduct the votes which the

dence referred by the House to the committee may show to be unlawful ”
After such developments as these, is it not proper that the House should ex
amine for themselves, before they consummate a deed which, if the facts as
stated be correct, will bring down upon the perpetrators of it the iust indie-

in their eflorts to have equal justice done to all, believing that it was rieht
he o' 1 '’7'ants should be heard before the “forthwith” report sho^d
be made one of the members (Mr. Smith) offered the following rLolution :

next at m nvin ? i ‘^^/ba'rman give notice to said parties that, on the 4lh day of March

vote,n^lTb'^''fr’' amendment to the amendment the yeas and nays being taken, those
voted in the affirmative were-Mr. Fillmore, Mr. Crabb, Mr. Smith-3

And in the negative—Mr. Rives, Mr. Medill,
bell—5.” ’

who

Mr. Brown, Mr. Fisher, Mr. Camp-

If the facts were not recorded, it would be almost impossible to believe
that a committee of this House could he found so reckless of public opinion
after having passed the resolution stating that they “ will not^ proceed to a
fhp spc Tm question of ultimate right depending before^them, until

the second Monday in April next,” to have instrucmd their chairman to make

a '■®POf OB 10 • ti of March, by which seats are given to their opponents,
and to have refused to notify J. B. Aycrigg and his friends of the fact. What
must have been the surprise of these gentlemen when they first heard that
this step had been taken ; that they had been betrayed ; that their case was
adjudged before the day of trial, and without their having a hearing : that
their opponents were placed in their seats at the moment that they were ab
sent taking testimony, by leave of the committee ?

It has been frequently the custom of members, when compelled to quit
their seats on business or to visit their families, to pair off with a political op-
pormnt a term well known here. I have never yet known a member so re

gardless of his ^bligations of honor as to avail himself of his presence here

I

I

I
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to vote in the absence of his
their voluntary resolution unrepealtd, g g March contrary to their

rwirofih:‘’accf:;i’i:h;t\"orirrh^^

EiSHSSS—iSgs
SS'SSsSE^^^^^
to them All this appears from the journals, which may be a suffic .

son why the printing of their proceedings and the minority’ •'^r;
objected to. Still gentlemen profess great consistency and f
ness- advocates for the printing, yet voting against it; asserting the doctrine

of' majorities, vet, when it subserves their purpose, voting against it.

their conduct in the case of Naylor and Tngersoll.
The journals of the present session show how sincere they

professions. [Here Mr. J. read from the journals of December 14, .vhere

112 members voted against Mr. Naylor’s right to vote, although he ^^ c^
missioned by the Governor of Pennsylvania, and had

an admitted

upwards of 700 votes over his competitor, Mr.
number (Mr. J. said) would be found the same Democratic Republican gen

Zen viho now profess to be such advocates for the doctrine^of majorities

Yes those same gentlemen of the committee, merely because
Mr. Ingersoll

charired that fraud had been committed at the election, which by their repu

diating his claim to a seat, without a hearing, they evidently did not be .eve

voted ^against Mr. Naylor’s right to his seat, and now, when fraud is proven

, they refuse to examine the testimony, and report
all

t
1 •

Wit

ness

In the New Jersey case

\u!.T s^aid he “houghMifhtd presented sufficient >-easons why the House

should delay the execution of their resolution of the 10th March u""' 'J®
evidence (the journal of the committee and the minority report) should be

printed He ioiild now refer to the means which had been ersorted to o

get up a false issue, to give a coloring to these transactions. The minority

i’ll this House has been charged with objecting to the printing of the docu

ments &c in the New Jersey case, and the gentleman from Virginia (Mr

Rives) savs we changed our ground-first against, and now for printing

Ills not tree that the minority in this House have ever been opposed t<

printing; notwithstanding which, these and other statements are made and p
out through the country, as the majority report is intended to do, without tin

antidote going with the poison. We have opposed your one-sided part.a

statements. We have objected to the majority’s report going out withou b

idence to prove its falsity accompanying it. We have proposed hat th

reports should be printed together ; this you have objected to. M e pro

pose to print the journal and the evidence, you have prevented it. You nov

Lte that you are in favor of printing the whole. It is because you have^ac
complished your object in making five Representatives

for the Smte of Nev

know that these facts Will go to the country, whethe

in

1
I ■

ev

two

Jersey ; and because you
printed by Congress or not.

«

t
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The Speaker having announced that the morning hour had expired—
Mr. Russell moved that the House proceed to the orders of the day.
Mr. Rives said he hoped the House, by unanimous consent, would permit

the gentleman from Maryland (Mr. Jenifer) to finish his'remarks, so that
the House miglit be enabled immediately to order the printing of the testi
mony.

Mr. Russell objecting, and persisting in his call for the orders of the day,
which were private bills—

Mr. Rives moved a suspension of the rule, for the purpose above indica

ted by him, and asked the yeas and nays; which were ordered, and, being
taken, were: Yeas 89, nays 75. > > s

So, two-tbirds not voting in the affirmative, the rules were not suspended.
Mr. Rives then said he had risen lor the purpose of asking the favor of

the House that he might make a statement in relation to what had occurred

this morning in particular. He believed the gentleman from Maryland, (Mr.
Jenifer,) in the course of his remarks, did him injustice ; and he had not
been afforded an opportunity to ascertain whether it was intentionally done

. It was with that view that he had moved a suspension of the rules,
in order that he might, at the earliest moment, call on that gentleman for
explanation. Can 1 proceed! (inquired Mr. R.)
The Speaker said the gentleman could only proceed by

or not

an

r unanimous con

sent.

Mr. Alford said, I object,
kind in this House.

I am tired of the discussion of matters of this
The House has already refused to suspend the rule ;

and I hope, in the irresponsible condition in which we all are as to the law,
that gentlemen will unite with me in putting down these personalities.

Mr. Rives. Let me tell the gentleman from Georgia (Mr. Alford) that
his refusing to suffer me to proceed at this time may produce the very state
of things which, I am inclined to think, he wishes to avoid.

Mr. Jenifer hoped'the gentleman from Georgia would withdraw his ob
jection.

Mr. Alford. I cannot do so. Let the matter be taken up when the re
port comes up in the next morning hour, when gentlemen are cool.

Mr. Rives. Then I respectfully appeal to my political friends on this
floor never to proceed to any other business until I have been enabled to do
myself justice.

The Speaker again notified the gentleman from Virginia that he could
only proceed by general consent.

Mr. Jenifer said he would appeal to his friends here to suffer the gentle
man from Virginia (Mr. Rives) to make his statement.

I call the gentleman from Maryland (Mr. Jenifer)
der. I hope the House will go lo the private orders of the day.

Mr. Rives. Have I a friend in this House who will move that the rules
be suspended, that I may be permitted to be heard 1

Mr. Beattv. I move a suspension of the rules, for the purpose of allow
ing the gentleman to make his explanation.

Mr. Weller, observing that he wished to know who it was that was un

willing to allow the gentleman from Virginia to have justice done him, asked
the yeas and nays, which were ordered.

Mr. Alford raised a question of order whether it was competent to move

a suspension of the rules twice for the same purpose, no action having taken
place by the Jlouse intervening the motions.

Mr. Stanlv.
to or-

1
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The Speaker said the other motion was to suspend the rules for the pur

pose of considering the subject of the New Jersey question generally, and
the motion now was to permit the gentleman from Virgiifia (Mr. Rives) to

make a statement in relation to a particular matter, and it was therefore in

Mr. Alford. Well, sir ; the law forbids fighting here, and I shall do all I

can to put down these personal matters.
After a remark from Mr. Adams, the import of which the Reporter could

not hear with accuracy— , , •
The question on the motion to suspend the rules was taken, and deci

ded in the affirmative : Yeas 132, nays 37.
So the Speaker announced that the rules were suspended for the purpose

of enabling the gentleman from Virginia (Mr. Rives) to make his explana
tion.

Mr. Rives then said : Mr. Speaker: Before I proceed to the consideration

of any thing that has been said by the gentleman from Maryland, (Mr. Jeni
fer,) I beg leave to give my thanks to the House for the privilege it has
afforded me. And, further, I have a request to make of the Reporters who

I have also the same request to make of the letter-writers,
have witnesses in this House, and what a gentleman may say is

are present.
Sir, we 1
written down by them, and, if privately done, it is impossible for them at
times to keep themselves erect before their constituents. Hence it is that I

have made this appeal to Reporters—to partisan Reporters—for it is to be

presumed that, upon occasions, generally they will give a coloring to the side
which they advocate ; but when any thing personal has taken place between
members, it is their duty, as honorable men, to give a fair account of what

I believe confidently that, in this instance, they will do mehas occurred.

Justice.
I was apprehensive when the gentleman from Maryland (Mr. Jenifer)

first took the floor, knowing that he was a gentleman of much impetuosity

of temper, and fearing that he might, under his then state of feeling, do me

injustice—so soon as he opened the subject which was calculated to make a

breach between us—I told him, in the most respectful manner, what was the

position I occupied, and what my object was.
like to avoid, and, to prevent them, it is frequent for gentlemen to throw
themselves between another’s speaking and what he was likely to say.

Without entertaining any idea of what the gentleman might say, and in

order to justify myself to the world, should any thing unpleasant occur, I

disposed to prevent the injury from being done, and therefore inturrupted
him in the course of his remarks by a brief explanation. On yesterday I

inclined to think that the gentleman did not put the subject in a situation
rendering it necessary for me to notice any thing he said ; but I have since

understood that he has made a remark, which, if 1 am not mistaken, may
render it necessary for me to bring it to the notice of this House. This I

shall do in the conclusion of my remarks.
Mr. Speaker, through life it has ever been my disposition to produce har

mony among those with whom I may have occasion to act, either in private
or in public life. It has been my disposition to throw, whenever I could,

oil on the tempestuous waves. It has always been my wish, instead of pro
ducing dissensions, to heal them. Instead of endeavoring to produce angry
collisions—instead of trying to get one man arrayed against another—it has
always been my disposition to interpose and effect a reconciHation. But,

Personal difficulties I always

was

was
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isH''”no posses, persona courage, yet 1 have something else far more vihnhlf

s=SSH?-™^

£?e=£5SllP^SS
asiSSHssliis
Whilst S ‘ I to be prudent and
whilst addressing the gentleman, erquest him to believe that I niean nni^rn ’
-n nitimidation in what I am saving.' My purpose is to hare myreh rigMed!!

I • a . , ^ gentleman too well to believe that he
could be induced, under a threat or a menace, to erpair an injur which

boS' TS?„: s z;,
..r:: =i'r t" £-“5 “z^crrj

man came, because he says the gentleman from Virginia (Mr.^eixTs) and'

I I’nve not assailed any one. Hence it was that the o-. it *

» j • • . nils word, not in an ofiensive sense, because T

not asserted it m that sense, but because the gentleman has sS
things that are not sustained by the ercord. He, however, has done this
intentionally, as 1 hope and presume; but simply because be

in discussing a subject he was not acquainted' with. His
protect certain gentlemen who, as he said, could not
engaged him to volunteer to enter
all about it.

I will now state

'i

e '•

not to intimidate another.

on

to •

many
not

was engaged
over anxietv to

. protect themsefves,
upon a subject when he knows nothing at

_ . gentleman from Maryland one thin? he said wh:,.tv
IS 0 me offenstve, and I wish him to determine whether, in my undema^^
Hig of It, I am mistaken or not. In speaking of my remarks on the cliurse
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of the Governor of New Jersey, the gentleman said to me, “ Suppose the

Governor ef old Virginia were to return one individual as duly elected to a

seat in this House, and another individual should come here and claim a seat

under a return, not from the Governor, hut from the sheriff who conducted

the election, would the gentleman from Virginia be willing to take a seat i^
this way 1” I understood the gentleman to mean to ask me whether 1 would

come here under the sheriffs’ return, when the Governor of Virginia had

returned another gentleman as duly elected? Was that the case !

[Mr. Jenifer said he had made no such statement—had supposed no such

'^'*Mr. Rives. Then I have mistaken the matter entirely. I understood

him to ask me whether I would come here and claim a seat under a return

from the sheriffs, while another held the return of the Governor, which should

have been given to me. So understanding him, I nodded assent. It has

been stated to me by gentlemen around me that the gentleman from JVlarylana

then said “ he believed the gentleman from Virginia would do any thing.

I do not know whether the gentleman did say so ; I wish him to state whether

I did not myself hear him say so. When I nod to the
gentleman’s inquiry, I mean to say that, if the sheriffs furnished me with

evidence that showed I had been elected, I would come to this Hall and take

my seat on that evidence. And why 1 Because the laws of Virginia re

quire the sheriffs to furnish me with this evidence, and to send ano^er copy
of the same to the Governor ; and it further requires that the Governor

shall return as elected the same individual whom the sheriffs return to him

as elected. Suppose the Governor had returned my competitor, and the

sheriffs had returned me, I say I would come here on the sheriffs’ return.

But in relation to the Governor of Virginia, who has undertaken to express

an opinion in reference to the course of the Governor of New Jersey. Al

though the laws require that he shall return all those whom the sheriffs return,

he returned but one individual. If 1 had waited for the broad seal, I should

have come here without any title at all. I brought with me the evidence of

my election, and the contesting claimants from New Jersey also brought with
them the evidence of their having been elected, and hence I advocate their

claim to seats on this floor.
It has been said that the committee made a report in their favor without

having read the evidence. The gentleman from New York (Mr. Fillmore)

supposed a case, it is true, and he asked what would the House think if a

report should have been adopted in the committee when the members of that

committee had not read the evidence on which it professed to be founded 1

And an attempt has been made to impress the public mind with the belief

that the evidence never was read. The journal of the committee, which is

here, will show the falsehood of such a charge. Before I resume my seat, I

shall’insist on a portion of it being read. The House will then see that the

evidence was read, not once only, but twice, and that it was argued at length

before the committee by the parties themselves, although it has been roundly
asserted here that it never was read at all.

I feel very unwilling, after the House has so far indulged me, to trespass

on its kindness by making a speech. I would prefer doing that hereafter;
and then I should like to see how many of those who have occupied a certain

ground will abandon it before this discussion closes. However anxious I may

be to discuss the subject, after the gentleman from Maryland has said that

we are unwilling to print, and want to keep the people of Virginia in the

in
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he did or not
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dark, 1 will not do so at this time. But I want now prominently to call the
attention of the people of the United Slates to this fact. When the Com

mittee of Elections had determined that the case of the New Jersey election
should be postponed until the second Monday in April next, I moved that
the chairman be directed to have all the papers in the case printed ; but in
that I failed. The gentlemen in the opposition all voted against it. I then
gave information to the members of the committee that I would next morning
move in the House the same instruction to the chairman ; and, further, that
I would continue to move the same tiling, from day to-day, unless some other
gentleman did it, till they were printed. And I did so. I made the propo
sition here and in the committee to print all the papers.

[Mr. Smith, of Connecticut, here rose to explain, but cries of “ No, no”—

Order”—“ Go on, go on,” arose, and Mr. S. resumed his seat.

Mr. Gentry now called Mr. Rives to order. He said it was with great
reluctance that he interrupted the gentleman; but he had, at the gentleman’s
earnest request, voted to suspend the rules for the purpose of an explanation
of some matter personal to the gentleman himself, and in which he conceived

his honor to be implicated ; not that he might enter into the general subject of
the conduct of the committee or the printing of papers.

Mr. Rives said he had been charged with a desire to suppress the'evidence,
and with being guilt3' of acts which he was unwilling the people should know.
Would the gentleman refuse him the liberty to vindicate himself?

Mr. Gentry. All that relates to his course as a public man : it has noth

ing to do with his personal honor.]
Mr. Rives. I moved to print the whole of the papers connected with the

New Jersey case. This was on Friday. I moved to suspend the rules in

order to introduce a resolution that the discussion be deferred till the Tues

day following ; that it then be made the special order, and so continue every
day after the morning hour, till the subject should be disposed of; and that,
in the meanwhile, all the papers be printed. The chairman of the committee

has, on two occasions, moved to print all the papers connected with the case ;

but gentlemen on the other side would not suspend the rules. On six differ

ent occasions I voted for the printing ; yet I have been charged with a dis
position to suppress the facts of the case until the elections in Virginia should
be over. You, sir, know that our Legislature proceeded in that manner.

Our party in that body proposed to send to the Governor of New Jersey' for
the evidence in the case which had been before him ; but the Whigs were
afraid of its effect, and would not consent to it. I am delighted since then
to find that the party has become ashamed of itself for moving in that man
ner, and have abandoned it, because they knew that their course would meet

the condemnation of the people. The administration party in this House
have been endeavoring to print the evidence, and the opposition have per-
severingly refused to do it. In my own State we ask for all the papers,

[Mr. Gentry here again interposed, and called Mr. Rives to order. He

wished the Chair to decide whether, after the floor had been given to the gen
tleman to make a personal explanation, and prevent a personal difficulty with
the gentleman from Maryland, he was in order in going into a discussion of

what had passed in the Virginia Legislature?
Mr. Botts said, if the gentleman was allowed to go into that subjedt, he

should claim to say a word.
Mr. Wise said he was willing his colleague should proceed ; but if he at-

c-%

but
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tacked the conduct of Mr. W.’s friends in the Virginia Legislature, who were
not here to reply for themselves, Mr. AV. should certainlv claim the righto
speaking for them.

• after the House, by an express vote, had refused to con

tinue the discussion on thelNew Jersey case, and the gentleman from Virginia
had earnestly entreated liberty to make an explanation personal to himself,
in which his private honor was concerned, could it be in order for him to oq

into the general subject?
Mr. Bvnum required Mr. Gentry to reduce his point of order to writing.
Mr. Gentry said he would, at the request of several of his friends,

sent to witlidraw his objection, and let the gentleman proceed.
Mr. Botts said, then he should renew the objection. He had voted to

Mispend the rules, because the gentleman had earnestly appealed to the
House, and had asked wliether he had not one friend on that floor who

would move that the rules be suspended that he might be allowed to make

a personal explanation—but not that the gentleman might arraign the course
of he Governor of Virginia. If the gentleman proceeded any further
that ground, Mr. B. had a word to say.

Mr. Bynum required Mr. Botts to reduce his point of order to writing.
Ml Botts. H the Chair requests it, 1 will do so with the utmost pleas-
e, ut if not, I won’t. Mr. B. understanding it to be required by the

^ P''o<=eeding to reduce his point of order to writing when—
Mr. Kives rose and began to speak.
Mr. Botts. I hope my colleague will be required to take his seat, and

tieep It, until I have written the point of order,
Mr. Rives resumed his seat, and the point of order was sent to the Clerk’s

table and read.

Mi, Weller inquired of the Cliair on whose motion the rules had been
suspended ?

The Chair replied on the
(Mr. Be.xtty.)

The Chair now decided that Mr. Ri

eon-

1.

on

\

motion of the gentleman from Pennsylvania,

r I .T - *ves was out of order in going into the
wl" t f ^ New Jersey election, and particularly in discussing
what had tak(?n place in the Legislature of Virginia,

Mr. Rives resumed, I most cheerfully acquiesce in the decision of the

the Speaker and the House will see how I was situated, owing

if I f ' subject. The gentleman
rom Maryland a luded to Virginia, to ary influence in that Statefand said
that the paity with whom 1 act had done eertain things which were not fair;
and hence 1 was induced to say what I did.
I iil'lnm dwelt longer upon this subject than I should have done.
I will not insist upon having the journal of the committee read, as I had at
first designed. When ,t is printed it will show that the evidence
twice, as I said.

I"‘' '•espect, I will ask of the gentleman from Mary-
and whether he said what I understand from othe.^s, that he did say, vL
shpl-ff* I t n" gentleman inquired whether, if returned by the

ff hi rriH 1 V"’ en 'e ^ay, » the gentleman nods assent;
I honi hi did n t ’ "'f-r u ° ''•e'-ds '^hich
pri.T»n.»t.g ""

Chair.

if
was read
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Mr. Jenifer. Hiive you done 2
Mr. Rives. I want him to answer niy inquiry.
Mr. Jenifer. I ask you if you have done, or liave you more lo say ; if

so, proceed till you have finished.
Mr. Rives. I desire the gentleman should, if he pleases, answer me at

this time.

Mr. Jenifer. I will do so with pleasure ; but I want to hear the whole

indictment. If this is all the gentleman has to ask of me, I will reply to
him ; if he has more queries to put, I should like, at once, to hear them.

Mr, Rives. There were many remarks of the gentleman in the course of

his speech which I thought the facts would not justify, but 1 determined

let the other things pass over, because I conceived them levelled at the^ par
ly rather than at myself individually ; but this one remark seemed to be di-

re(;ted to me personally.
Mr. Jenifer said he was gratified that the blouse had suspended the rules
afford the gentleman from Virginia an opportunity of asking for and ma

king an explanation. He was gratified also for another reason ; because,
since he had commenced his remarks, he had seen a charge made against
him, whether official or not he could not pretend to say, that “ on the
tion to print the one-sided depositions, Mr. Jenifer obtained the floor, and
had kept it through the morning hour ever since, without giving the repub
lican members of the committee an opportunity of reply to his distortions.

In reply to this, he had only to say that he had never refused to yield the
floor when asked for, and that a considerable portion of tbe morning hour
had been consumed by gentlemen making explanations. Therefore this

allegation is known to every member on this floor not to be true. The

courtesy which has been extended to the gentleman from Virginia, by so de
cisive a vote of the House, Mr. J. hoped would be the harbinger of a better
and more liberal feeling than has been heretofore practised tow'ards other

gentlemen who have been assailed, and who have been denied the privilege
of either explaining or responding.
The gentleman from Virginia was greatly mistaken if he supposed that his

imjjetunsity had led him to make the remarks of which the gentleman com
plained. It was true that his manner and habit of speaking was usually
warm, but neither passion nor impejuosity had prompted the remarks he had

made, but a conviction of the correctness of them, which was expressed in
an earnestness which the occasion called for. In the commencement of this

discussion, he had been warned by tbe kind admonition of the gentleman,
and was restrained by the anxiety which he had expressed “ that no person
al difficulty should grow out of it.” As an evidence of this disposition, he
(Mr. J.) had upon all occasions yielded the floor for any explanation from anv
gentleman who might consider himself aggrieved, or to correct any'erroneous

statement of which he was advised. Now, in regard to the gentleman from
Virginia, he would answer him, and, in doing so, he would do it frankly, for
the gentleman had disclaimed any intention of menace, any imputation as to
motives.

to

to

mo-

■ J

In order to understand the question propounded, and the answer to be

given, it will be necessary to refer to tbe fact which gave rise to the re
marks of which the gentleman complains.

Mr. J. said he was asked whether he used the expression that “ the gen
tleman from Virginia would do any thing,” and whether that remark “ was

intended as a personal injury I” In replying he would repeat, as nearly as
he could recollect, the language he did use.
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It will be borne in mind that the gentleman had introduced a resolution

in this House, now on the Speaker’s desk, charging the Governor of New

Jersey with having acted lawlessly and fraudulently in giving certificates to
five of the individuals claiming seats upon this floor from that State, and

basing the charge of fraud upon the ground that the other five claimants had

a majority of the votes, whether lawful or not.
This, together with other acts of the gentleman and his colleagues on the

committee to which he had referred, induced him to put the following
question.

Were the election laws of the State of Virginia similar to those of New

Jersey, and the Governor of Virginia had given a certificate of election ac-

cordirg to the Constitution of the United States and the laws of Virginia to
another individual, would the gentleman come hero and charge fraud upon
the Governor of Virginia, and claim his seat upon the ground that under t|ie
returns of the sheriffs he had a majority of vote's, when that majority was ob
tained by the votes of foreigners, of non-residents, and others, not entitled

to vote under the laws of Virginia, and when fraud had been committed by
the sheriffs or judges of election in receiving those votes, knowing them to
be illegal r
To this question the gentleman from Virginia seemed to nod assent, and

then the remark was made that “ if he would do that, he would do amj thing.
He, with his friends, had voted against the right to a seat of a member

who was admitted to have a majority of upwards of 700 votes ; and if the

supporting those who had a minority of votes was evidence ol fraud—he

wished it to be distinctly understood that if the gentleman believed that the

giving a certificate to a man who had a minority of votes was evidence of

fraud—the gentleman himself had answered the question. But (Mr. J. said)
if the gentleman from Virginia would satisfy him that he had done him in

justice, or that he would not thus have acted, it would give him pleasure to
disclaim any offensive allusion.

Mr. Rives. I thought the gentleman was supposing my own case. I

received a majority of several hundred votes over my competitor. Now, in
Virginia, it is the duty of the sheriffs to conduct the elections, and to give to
the person having a majority of the votes a certificate that he is elected, at
the same time sending a duplicate of thq same certificate to the Governor.

The law then makes it the duty of the Governor to give his returns to the

person who had thus received the certificate of the sheriffs. This being the
state of the fact, I supposed that the gentleman was stating my own case;
and believing that he inquired of me whether I, having received a majority
of the votes, would come here and claim my seat upon the return of the

sheriffs, when my competitor who received a minority of the votes, came here

and claimed it upon the return of the Governor—believing this to be the case

supposed by the gentleman, I nodded assent that 1 would.
Mr. Wise. Mr. Speaker, I hope this business will now be dropped ; it

is evident there is nothing between the gentlemen which requires any expla
nation, and I hope we shall proceed with the business of the House.

Mr. Jenifer asked the gentleman from Virginia if he was satisfied?

Mr. Rives replied that he was.
Mr. Jenifer then said he had nothing more to say.
There was a general expression of assent through the hall, and the House

proceeded to the orders of the day.

Li-
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Tuesday, March 17.
Mr. Jenifer, in continuation.
Mr. Jenifer said he desired to have finished on Saturday, and shouid have

done so but for the repeated interruptions for explanation ; nor should he now

proceed to say any thing more, greatly preferring some member of the commit

tee being heard, did he not see gentlemen looking with the eyes of a lynx to
catch the Speaker’s attention to call the previous question, which he felt as
sured would be done as soon as some member of the majority was heard. If

has been done before and will be done again. He, therefore, should sum up

what he had to say in as short a spaee as possible.
The'chairman of the Committee of Elections says that the instructions of

the House have been obeyed, and that equal and impartial justice has been’
done. That is a matter to be ascertained. Have the minority no rights I
Should not they be heard as well as the majority, and more especially when
the vote in committee stood o to 4 1 Why not, then, permit their report to
go alonj with the majority’s, and,-let this House and the country see both

sides of the question 1
But before touching that point, I will call the attention of the House to the

solemn appeal made by the gentleman from Virginia (Mr. Rives) on Satur

day, to the stenographers, editors, and letter-writers, to record truly and faith

fully what may be said or done in relation to these proceedings, in order that
how faithfully and how truly some of their friends have obeyedwe may see

this appeal.
Mr. J. said he held in his hand the New York Evening Post, just shown

him, in which was a letter purporting to give a true statement of the pro

ceedings of this Houe, and signed, John Smith of Arkansas, a well known

writer for the administration party here, although under a fictitious signature.

After denouncing the Whigs in the grossest.manner, he continues:

Mr. Rice Garland replied to Mr. Rives with much warmth, and defended the oppo-(<

sition.

Mr. Jenifer, of Maryland, a whig, who has always ranked as a courteous gentleman,

followed, and soon became very much excited. He charged that there had been foul play

in the committee-room of the Cpmmittee on Elections, and that the seal of a packet ot tes

timony in the case of the New Jersey contested election, addressed to the Speaker, had been

broken open. He intimated that Mr. Medill, of Ohio, was the offender.

“Mr. Medill demanded of Mr. Jenifer if he intended to accuse him of improper conduct;

or if he meant to say that what he (Mr. Medill) had said on the subject, on Saturday last.
He could explain; but his explanation would depend upon Mr. Jenifer’s

response.
Mr. Jenifer said that thews was a mystery about the affair, and he could not absolve

the gentleman from Ohio till it was explained.
“ Mr. Medill replied that he then had to say that what he had said a few days ago wa*

and he would defend it here and elsewhere^

ft

was not true.

true.

Before I comment upon this, 1 desire to know of the gentleman from Ohio

(Mr. Medill) whether the statement is true or not.
[Mr. Medill answered that it was not.]
Mr. Jenifer. I was sure the gentleman could give no other response ;

and my object in asking a reply was, that the House might know the charac-
of the instruments employed here, and how faithfully they reported the

proceedings. It will be noticed that, for the purpose of placing my name be

fore the public in an pdious aspect, this letter-writer was willing that his friend
from Ohio should bear the imputation of quietly submitting to a charge of
dishonorable conduct. Now, how does the matter standi Every member
of this House knows the statement to be untrue, and yet the individaal is

ter

I
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permiiled to retain his seat within the walls of this House, again to send forth
his faithlul reports. If the arembers of the majority are reconciled to this, I
have nothing further to say. They have it in their power to purge the hall
of such slanderous reptiles.

Mr. J. said, as he desired to conclude his remarks before the expiration of
the morning hour, and as he was unwilling to do injustice to any gentleman,
he would submit to the consideration of the members of the committee the

propositions he had assumed, and stand corrected if he were in error. As

the proceedings of the committee had not been printed, he had only an op
portunity of glancing over them ; but he had seen enough to satisfy his mind
that there had been a violation of the rights of the commissioned clafmants,
■of the State ot New Jersey, and of the laws and constitution of the country,
Mr. J. said he had reduced his propositions to writing, that there might be no
misunderstanding as to their import, which he should now submit, and afford
the chairman and his colleagues an opportunity of correcting errors of facts,
should there be any.

1st. It was the duty of the Committee of Elections, under the standing
rule of the House, “ to examine and report upon the certificates of election,
or other credentials, of the members returned to serve in this House.”

2d. That the committee, after taking into consideration the contested elec

tion in New Jersey, upon the application of J. B. Aycrigg and his colleagues,
did adopt a resolution “ requiring their chairman to notify the several claim
ants that the committee would not proceed to a final decision of ultimate

right, depending before them, until the second Monday in April next.
3d. Tliat in violation of this pledge, whilst the claimants were absent ob

taining the evidence to prove the illegality of votes taken at the polls, the
committee, without notifying them of their intention, although urged thereto,
or without examining depositions in their possession, going to prove the facts
alleged, did, on the 5th of March, make a report to this House, declaring
that P. Dickerson and his friends “ had the greatest number of lawful votes
at the election in 1838.”

4th. That the committee, before making their report, did refuse “

duct such unlawful votes as the evidence referred by the House to the

mittee may .show to be unlawful votes, or have been polled inconsistently
with the election laws of New Jersey.”

5th. That the House, without examining any testimony whatever, and
before the report was printed, did adopt a resolution, under the previous
question, directing the Speaker to qualify Philemon Dickerson, Peter D.
Vroom, Daniel B. Ryall, William R. Cooper, and Joseph Kille, as entitled
to seats in this House, notwithstanding there were depositions in possession
of the committee and House, unexamined, purporting to establish the follow

ing facts, whichl extract from the majority report:

to de-

com-

Upon this branch of the case, the claimants holding the Governor’'3 commissions-
(<

}
claim—

1st. That, apart from their not bcinff received in time to be counted according
law, the votes of Millville should be set aside for the fraudulent and illegal conduct of the
oflicers of election in proclaiming their intention to receive the votes of aliens, and in re
ceiving a large number of such knowingly, and in violation of the laws of the State.

“ 2d. They allege that, apart from all defects and irregularies in the return, the votes,
of South Amboy should be set aside, because one of the officers o£ election, duly chosen,
was unlawfully prevented from acting, and another substituted in his place who acted and
signed the list, &c. ; and because the board, thus unlawfully constituted, received a larger
number of alien votes contrary to law.”

((

to
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3d. It is further claimed that the poll held at Saddle Eiver, in Bergen county, should
be set aside: because at least eight votes given for them were fraudulently abstracted from
the ballot box, and as many for their opponents fraudulently, substituted; because, in ma

king out the list of votes in said township, at least eight votes less than were given for
them were counted in their favor, and at least as many were counted for their opponents
more than they received; and because the list of votes in said township bears upon its face
evidence of mistake or fraud.”

Mr. J. called on the chairman to say whether such a resolution was not

adopted as referred to in the 2d proposition 1
Mr. Campbell was understood to say, that the journal of the commit

tee had been reported to the House, and would speak for itself. A resolu

tion was adopted not to decide the question of ultimate right until the 2d
Monday in April, unless the parties should be sooner ready. The commit
tee reserving, in express terms, the right to report the facts of the case, with

its opinion thereon, at any stage of its proceedings, that it might think pro
per to do so. ‘

Mr. Jenifer. If the comm\ttee reserved the right to report the facts,
they should have reported all the facts, which they have not done ; and as

to the journal beii>g in possession of the House, its not being printed, pre
cludes the possibility of examing it in time. But I affirm that such a resolu

tion did pass, and stands unrepealed on the journals.
Mr. J. I ask if the facts assumed in the 3d proposition are not correct 1

Mr. Campbell (who, during all these explanations was very imperfectly
heard by the Reporter) was understood to refer to the proviso of the resolu
tion adopted by the House, and in conformity with which the committee had

reported, to show that the decision of the election, on its merits, was re
served for a future trial. ,

Mr. Jenifer referred to the 4th and 5th propositions, and called upon the
chairman to affirm or deny, whether the committee had not refused to ex

amine the testimony contained in a sealed package?
Mr. Campbell. The gentleman certainly does not mean to misstate. 1

know he would not intentionally do so.
Mr. Jenifer. No, hut I have a right to infer. Was there not a sealed

package purporting to contain testimony?
Mr. Campbell. There was no sealed package, the contents of which

the committee were at liberty to examine, previous to the report.
Mr. Jenifer. Was it not in the committee-room?

Mr. Campbell. Yes.

Mr. Jenifer. Was it not officially in the committee-room?
Mr. Campbell. On the morning that the report of the committee was

adopted, a sealed package, purporting to contain depositions, and addressed

to the Speaker of the House of Representatives, made its appearance for
the first time in the committee-room. But perhaps it is not known to the

gentleman, and the intelligence must be-received with some "surprise by the*
House, that upon the proposition to send that package to the Speaker to be
opened, in order that its contents might be examined, there were only two
votes in the affirmative, five in the negative ; the chairman not voting. Of
the five who voted against this proposition, there is to be found the name of

one gentleman, whose name is also signed to a certain document entitled the

Suppressed Report,” which states as “ a most imposing fact,” that the

majority of the committee refused to send this very package to the Speaker,
that it might be opened and its contents taken into consideration.
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Mr. Botts. What gentleman of the minority voted against sending this
package to the Speaker, to the end that it might be opened]

Mr. Campbell. Lep the journal, the record of the proceedings of the

committee, speak.
Mr. Smith, of Connecticut. The gentleman from Alabama (Mr. Crabb,

who is not in his seat) voted in the negative. He was not opposed to having
the contents of the package examined, but the phraseology of the resolution

was not acceptable to him.
Mr. Campbell. Do you persist in saying that the package was in pos

session of the committee, in such a way that its contents could be examined ?

that they should have broken the seal ]
Mr. Jenifer. Certainly not; 1 assert what facts will substantiate, and

want no equivocation.
Mr. Campbell. You are asserting what is partially contradicted.
Mr Jenifer. Was there not a sealed ,.<ickage in posse.ssion of the com

mittee before the report was made 1 and did not that package purport to
contain depositions from Millville and South Amboy, proving the illegality
of votes? And was not that package in the gentleman’s bands? What the

gentleman means by possession, I do not know. Having the package in his
hands, on his desk, in the committee-room, and the right to send it to the
Speaker to be opened, and a proposition made to that effect, and he and his

friends refused to do it, looks very much like suppression, if not possession ?
Mr. Campbell. If I am not mistaken, the gentleman by his vote upon

the proposition to refer the depositions contained in this sealed package, has
in effect acknowledged that the committee had no authority to examine them

until they jvere referred to it by the House.
Mr. Jenifer. Here are the facts. The gentleman from New York (Mr.

Fillmore) proposed to recommit the report, for the purpose of examingthe
testimony, and the chairman of the committee, 1 believe, voted against it.
The gentleman, therefore, had it in his power to do justice and he did not.

Mr. Campbell. I say that the vote was five to two against sending the
sealed package to the Speaker to be opened.

Mr. Jenifer said the chairman seemed to doubt tbe propriety of his own

course ; for, after he made the report, he did not vote for the resolution giving
seats to Mr. Dickerson and his friends. That looked like there was some-

The committee having refused” to take up the evi
dence before them, to ascertain “ which five of the ten individuals claiming
seats from the State of New Jersey received the greatest number of laioful
votes, &c.; having refused to deduct the “ unlawful votes,” or those polled
inconsistently with the election laws of the State, although instructed b^ the
resolution of this House to report upon the “ lawful votes;” having resolved
that all the voles given at Millville and South Amboy are “ lawful votes,

when the depositions in their possession prove the contrary ; it must be ap
parent to the House and the country that the committee have either grossly
misapprehended their duty, or have not discharged it with that spirit of im

partiality which should characterize a Committee of Elections, in declaring
that Philemon Dickerson and his friends had the greatest number of lawful

votes. The chairman did not vote for the resolution giving them seats: so
far, his conscience was clear ; but the other members of the committee had

compunctions whatever. They determine that all the votes are lawful;

that their five friends had the greatest number; and the House, placing im-

thing wrong.
Mr. J. continued.
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plicit confidence in them, without looking at the facts, or troubling them

selves about the manner in which the committee came to the conclusion, di

rected the Speaker to swear them in—and they have been
sworn

I will, before I conclude, direct the attention of the House to an extract

of a letter I have lately seen published, which struck me with some astonish

ment when I read it. A few days since, a minority member ol the commit

tee had been charged with “ something very suspicious” in receiving a let

ter, because it was said to come from one of the claimants for a seat on this

floor. For myself, 1 djd not see what great impropriety there could be in

nv gentleman, whether of the committee or not, corresponding witii others

pon the subject of the contested election in New .Jersey. Stdl, a riiember

of the committee deemed it of so much importance that he made it the sub

ject of a grave charge against one of his fellow-members, and attempted to

brin<r down upon him the oduim^the country. ^Vhat will
be the astonish

ment of the House if it turuslouJlat a member oi the majority Ote com-

ittee should be found guilty of what his'friends deiiouua; as dishonorable

fMr. J. here read an extract o#a lettei/ published in the Globe, without date

or signature, but which, from the purport of it, was from one of the claim

ants to a member of the majority of the Committee of Elections.] Now, I

am not very curious, but I desire to know wbetlier any member received
that letter, and, if so, whicli of them ? Did the chairman 'I [Mr. Camp-

BELL answered in the negative. Mr. J. was about to call on another inera-

her of the committee, when Mr. Fisheu, of North Carolina, said he had re

ceived it.] Then, said Mr. .T., I wish the gentleman to understand that I

do not consider that there was any dishonor in the act. But the gentleman

from Ohio (Mr. Medill) iiaviiig denounced it disgraceful for a minority

member of the committee to hold a secret correspondence with any of the

parties interested, I presume it cannot, according to his notions, he lionora-

ble for a ma/on'fy member to do so.
It necessarily follows that the gentleman from North Carolina (Mr. t isn-

kr) and his friend from Ohio (Mr. Medill) are at issue, and I leave them to

settle the point of honor between them. I will, however, ask the gentleman

from North Carolina (Mr. Fisher) another question. When was that letter

received ; before or after the report was made J
Mr. Fisher said he was not certain, but inclined to the belief that it was
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Mr. Jenifer said, as the. gentleman was not certain, lie would venture to

express the opinion, that the letter had been received prior to the making

of the report, and he had no doubt had much to do with the precipitancy of

the report. The writer warns his correspondent, “ That if any of the de

positions should be sent on, and it should be attempted to make any use of

them, either in the committee or in the Housp, it might be known that the

examination into t^p South Amboy electon is not yet finished on eithe^
side. , ■ c J ■ J

This letter was written to operate upon the actions of the committee, and

we have a right to infer from the circumstances that it had the effect. If I

am wrong in this, and the letter was an innocent communication, as the one

charged to be suspicious was, let the member from North Carolina produce

it, and compare it with the one received by the gentleman from Connecticut,

who lias offered to submit his to the inspection of the House. The astute

editor of the Globe, and he who furnished that extract, intended it to have

effect upon the House, or why publish it in connexion with this question
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whilst pending. It subserved its purposes elsewhere, and no doubt

part of the argument against the examination of the testimony proving the
illegality of the election at South Amboy.

In the same Globe, immediately following this letter, is a charge against
me, which every member on this floor knows to be unfounded, to wit:

On the motion to print the one-sided depositions, Mr. Jenifer obtained the floor,
and has kept it through the morning hour ever since, without giving the Republican mem
bers of the committee an opportunity to reply to his distortions,” &c.

Having upon its first appearance pronounced it to be untrue, notwithstand

ing its repetition in the printed remarks of the gentleman from Ohio, (Mr.
Medill,) I cannot qualify the e.xpression.

Mr. Medill tisked what the gentleman from Maryland meant?

Mr. Jenifer. Had you not opportunity to e.vpiain, and was it not always
afforded you ?
Mr. Medill. I did occupy the (loor-b .he permission of tiie gentleman,

and if he will yield the door I will anwer.
Mr. Jb.viper said it was known to .;ji1 that ne had never refused to allow

an explanation to be made by any gentleman who desired it, and lie had

upon all occasions done so to the members of the committee. And although
he had other remarks to make, yet as he intended to leave Washington, on
business which could not be dispensed with, in the course of the next two

days, he would now yield the floor before the morning hour had expired,
to afford any gentleman of the committee who might consider himself aggriev
ed by any remarks he may have made during this discussion, an opportunity
to reply or call for explanation. He hoped it might be done whilst he

present, and no advantage taken of his absence.
Mr. J. yielded the floor, and Mr. Brown, of Tennessee, followed in reply.
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